
PERSONS REQUIRING SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS FOR ATTENDANCE AT THE MEETING SHOULD  
CONTACT THE VILLAGE LIBRARY AT LEAST ONE (1) BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO THE MEETING. 

 
 
LIBRARY BOARD MEETING 
Monday, July 13, 2015 
Library Community Room,  5:00 P.M.  
 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that a meeting of the Brown Deer Library Board will be held in the 
Community Room at the Brown Deer Library, 5600 West Bradley Road, Brown Deer, Wisconsin at the 
above noted time and date, at which the following items of business will be discussed and possibly acted 
upon: 
 

I. Roll Call 
 

II. Call for Additional Agenda Items 
 

III. Persons Desiring to be Heard 
a. Visit by Bruce Gay, MCFLS Director 

 
IV. Consideration of Minutes: June 8 2015 

 
V. Unfinished Business 

a. Strategic Planning update 
 
VI. Report of Library Director 

a. Director’s Report 
b. Usage Report 
c. Revenue/Expense Report 

 
VII. New Business 

a. Consideration of Vouchers: June 2015 
b. Discussion: 2016-2020 CIP Requests 
c. Discussion: MCFLS Member Agreement 2016-2017 
d. Informational: SEWI Library Director’s Retreat August 7 

 
VIII. Report of Friends of the Library 

 
IX. Adjournment 
 

 
Brian Williams-Van Klooster, Library Director 

July 7, 2015 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 1 of 24



 
BROWN DEER LIBRARY BOARD 
June 8, 2015 MEETING MINUTES 

HELD AT THE BROWN DEER PUBLIC LIBRARY 
5600 WEST BRADLEY ROAD 

(Unapproved) 
 

 
The meeting was called to order by Board President Lutz at 5:00 P.M. 
 

I. Roll Call 
Present:  Board President Lutz and Board members: J. Baker, E. Bennett, W. Jabas 

 Also Present: Brian Williams-Van Klooster, Library Director 
Excused: S. Snyder 

 
II. Persons Desiring to be Heard 

None. 
 
III. Consideration of Minutes: 

a. May 11, 2015 – Regular Meeting 
It was moved by W. Jabas and seconded by E. Bennett to approve the minutes of the May 11, 2015 regular 
meeting.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
IV. Unfinished Business 

a. Review of DPW/Library Annual Maintenance MOU 
The Library Director presented the agreement between Village DPW Director and Village 
Library for spring and fall annual maintenance. This agreement includes verification of proper 
working order of the basement sump pumps twice per year. President Lutz said this agreement 
was a good idea. President Lutz also mentioned that she can get hostas for the patch of soil 
adjacent to the community room windows, currently bare. She said she will contact the new 
gardeners to install them. Library Director said he would request mulch from DPW after they are 
planted. 

 
V. Report of Library Director 

a. Director’s Report 
 The Director offered a correction for the Reciprocal Borrowing payment, increasing it by $1035 to 
 $87,769 due to a MCLFS accounting error that originally removed South Milwaukee payments from the 
 calculation. President Lutz asked for information about what PeachJar is, asked for clarification regarding 
 notes that reference reordering a cancelled list from Baker & Taylor, and asked for clarification about the 
 seeming inconsistency in April dates noted in the MCFLS highlights. The Director briefly gave 
 background and clarification on each item. 

b. Usage Report 
There were no verbal highlights or discussion of the report. 

c. Revenue/Expense Report 
W. Jabas asked if any expenditures in the Building Maintenance & Repair line are refundable by the 
insurance claim. The Director said this number will show a slight reduction in June after some basement 
repairs are refunded. 

 
VI. New Business 

a. Consideration of Vouchers: May 2015 
It was moved by E. Bennett and seconded by W. Jabas to approve the payment of the May 2015 vouchers.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 

b. Approval: Library Policy IV: Library Rules and Regulations 
The Director asked for Board approval of the addition of text as presented, allowing for 
beverages with secure, leakproof lids. He noted the intent of the change is to accommodate the 
rise in ‘coffee culture’ wherein the public increasingly expects to carry beverages with them as 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 2 of 24



they conduct daily business. He said this also lays the groundwork to allow for a future coffee 
kiosk partnership with Brown Deer High School. 

It was moved by W. Jabas and seconded by J. Baker to approve the Policy as presented. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 W. Jabas initiated discussion about rule G of the same Policy regarding solicitation in the library. 
 She noted that the Library has a donation box on the checkout counter, but this policy clearly 
 prohibits it. Members discussed the various ways the policy could be reworded to allow a 
 donation box for Library purposes. 
It was moved by W. Jabas and seconded by J. Baker to revise item G of Brown Deer Public Library 
Policy Manual IV to restrict placing of containers or other receptacles by non-Brown Deer Library-
affiliated groups for the purpose of receiving donations. The motion carried unanimously. 

c. Approval: Library Policy VIa: Borrowing Privileges 
The Director asked for Board approval of the addition of the text as presented, clearly defining a 
valid library card. He said he noticed that the recently-approved Laptop Agreement Form, and 
other BDPL and MCFLS policies, reference a valid library card requirement but do not define 
what constitutes validity. This text offers a clear definition. 

It was moved by J. Baker and seconded by E. Bennett to approve the Report as presented. The motion 
carried unanimously. 

d. Discussion: North Shore Community Reads 
The Director provided updates on planning for the North Shore Community Reads program. The 
book chosen is Julia Pandl’s Memoirs of the Sunday Brunch. He said programs will occur this 
summer, several book groups and author talks have been organized by Whitefish Bay and North 
Shore Libraries. He plans to offer something different for the Brown Deer programming but 
hasn’t firmed up details. He said he plans to solicit funds from the Friends of the Brown Deer 
Library to fund purchase of extra copies of the book for the library’s collection and for 
distribution around Brown Deer via little free libraries, restaurants and Friends volunteers. 

e. Discussion: MCFLS new/enhanced services proposal 
The Director explained that the packet attachment showing MCFLS New/Enhanced Services is 
offered by MCFLS Director Bruce Gay in response to recent MCFLS Strategic Planning 
discussions with MCFLS member library Directors. Director Gay met with each member library 
director after distributing the Services proposal to gather feedback. The Library Director said his 
feedback to Director Gay was that any new services would need to have a direct positive and 
noticeable impact to patrons, and that any services requiring a reduction in Brown Deer Library’s 
reciprocal borrowing revenue would be a tough sell to the Brown Deer Library Board. The 
Library Director said that he is not looking for Library Board action on this proposal, as he 
expects Director Gay will revisit the topic with member libraries after all feedback is gathered, 
hopefully providing a simpler menu of options. The Board expressed they had lots of unresolved 
questions about the proposal. The Director offered to invite Director Gay to an upcoming 
meeting to discuss the proposal. 

 
VII. Report of Friends of the Brown Deer Library 

The next Friends meeting is the annual pot-luck style meeting scheduled for July 9 at 6:30PM at W. 
Jabas’ house. President Lutz said that revenue from the Plant Sale will be available at the next Board 
meeting. 

 
VIII. Adjournment 

Next meeting:  July 13, 2015.  It was moved by W. Jabas and seconded by E. Bennett to adjourn at 5:40 P.M.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

 
Brian Williams-Van Klooster, Library Director 

June 9, 2015 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 3 of 24



  

  Page 1 of 3 
 

Brown Deer Public Library - Director's Report 
June 2015 

Budget 
• GFWC Brown Deer Woman’s Club donation of $500 

 
Facility 

• Contractors contacted to bid on gutter installation for north side of building, water continues to 
infiltrate along north side of basement at wall/ceiling joint 

• Carpets scrubbed throughout library on June 16 
 
Meetings & Training 

• Fire alarm extension 6/1 
• Village Trustees 6/1 
• Department Heads 6/2 
• MCFLS LDAC 6/4 
• North Shore Reads 6/5 
• Village facility study 6/8 
• Library Board 6/8 

• BDPL Strategic plan consultation 6/9 
• BDPL staff monthly meeting 6/9 
• BDPL strategic plan consultation 6/11 
• Department heads 6/16 
• BDPL Strat plan consultation 6/18 
• Village facility study 6/22 

 
 
Marketing/Communication/Outreach/PR 

• New BDPL logo was announced via library media channels on June 5 
• Library staff hosted a tent at Eat and Greet on the Street on June 6 

 
Staff 

• Mary Dunn celebrated 35 years of service to the BDPL on June 30, she began her career in 1980 as the 
children’s librarian 

• New Library Reference Intern to start July 1 
• Library Assistant resignation w/ July 31 last day, new LA employment posting up June 22, closed July 6 
• All regular staff completed two Village-required CVMIC online trainings 
• Half of all staff annual performance evaluations are complete 

 
Miscellaneous 

• Participating in joint NEH Common Heritage grant application with Whitefish Bay, North Shore, Shorewood and 
Brown Deer libraries. Goal is to create a local history mobile digitization lab. BW will attend July BD Historical 
Society meeting to share as well as present BDPL’s recent volunteer projects that digitized the Newsletter and 
indexed BD Herald newspaper headlines from BDPL’s collection-to be hosted online. BW will offer to recruit SOIS 
student(s) to inventory and index records in BDHS collection. 

• Numerous teens and young adults have contacted us to volunteer for community service, school service, and 
general volunteer experience, several special projects are saved for their help including collection shifting, 
indexing back issues of the Brown Deer Herald and digitizing the Brown Deer Historical Society Newsletter  

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 4 of 24



  

  Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Children's / Young Adult Services 
From Dana’s monthly report 
I did school visits to the Brown Deer Elementary School on June 2nd and 4th. I talked to the 4th, 5th, and 6th graders about 
the summer reading program. On June 3rd, I finished up our special K-5 storytimes for three K-5 classrooms, and also 
talked to them about our summer reading program. Due to time constraints, I could not talk to the 1st-3rd grade 
classrooms, but the school’s elementary librarian talked up the program during their regularly scheduled library visits.  

I led interviews for a new Reference Intern, with Kelley assisting. We narrowed it down to 4 of the applicants, and 
interviewed them on June 8th and 9th. The candidate that was selected did accept the position, and will begin on July 1st.  

My Roaming Gnome program continues to be a success again this summer, and is bringing kids in every day in droves in 
hopes of finding him. 

We’ve already broken last year’s record for number of teens registering for the Teen Summer Reading Program. Last 
year, a total of 75 teens registered. As of the afternoon on June 30th, we already have 104 teens registered. 

Programs: 
Wednesday June 10th Disney Movie Afternoon – 5 people 
Thursday June 11th Movie Night – 14 people 
Tuesday June 16th Gaming Afternoon – 9 people 
Wednesday June 17th Daddy & Me Tea Party – 22 people (15 were registered, 7 were walk-ins halfway through) 
Tuesday June 23rd Performer Glen Gerard – 58 people 
Wednesday June 24th Garden Party – 65 people 
Thursday June 25th Movie Night – 11 people 
Tuesday June 30th Lego Club – 29 people 
 
Meetings & Training 
Displays 
“Murder Most Foul” YA display 
“Great Summer Reads” J and MS display 
 
Miscellaneous 
“Hooray for Books! Reading Initiatives and Celebrations” 
“Virtual Storytime” 
2 mandatory webinars for work certification (blood borne pathogens and harassment in the workplace) 
 

Adult Services 
Displays 

• Summer Reading Patron Picks 
 
Meetings & Training 

• 6/9 Monthly Staff Meeting 
• CVMIC required training 

 
Programs 

• Planned fall book club schedule of titles.  Created a 10 list of titles read by the Book Club since it started in 2005 
to be put out fall and given to the attendees of the Sept. Book Club. 

• Planned Movies for Grown Ups movies for Fall 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 5 of 24



  

  Page 3 of 3 
 

• Final touches have been put on North Shore Community Reads program with Brown Deer event 
scheduled for Sunday July 26 at Dolan Community Center – light brunch and author talk 

• Kelley interviewed the 4 Librarian Intern candidates with Dana 
 
 
 

MCFLS / Other 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 6 of 24



Brown Deer Library
Monthly Usage Report

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Visits 

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

5,000

7,000

9,000

11,000

13,000

15,000

17,000

19,000

21,000

23,000

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Checkouts 

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

Adult1 
63% 

Youth1 
34% 

Digital2 
3% 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 7 of 24



Brown Deer Library
Monthly Usage Report

600

700

800

900

1,000

1,100

1,200

1,300

1,400

1,500

1,600

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

Hours of Computer Use 

2014

2013

2015

JAN
FEB
MAR
APR
MAY
JUN
JUL
AUG
SEP
OCT
NOV
DEC
TOTAL

Reserves/Holds
Staff 

assisted 
holds  1

% change 
from last 

year

Holds 
Sent from 
BD 8

% change 
from last 

year
438 -2% 2,252 33%
414 8% 1,531 1%
462 0% 1,781 10%
441 -8% 1,520 5%
344 -20% 1,353 -9%
434 -15% 1,568 2%

- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

2,533 10,005

Juv/YA 
pgms6

Juv/YA 
attend6

Adult 
pgms6

Adult 
attend6

Total 
atten

d

% Attend 
change 
from last Notes

2 70 0 0 70 -39%
11 304 3 47 351 88% CD art co             
14 322 5 79 401 93% Gaming-      
11 224 2 37 261 112%
5 56 1 15 71 -28% Law Day

11 323 4 4 327 -16%
0 -
0 -
0 -
0 -
0 -
0 -

54 1,299 15 182 ####

Programs

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 8 of 24



Brown Deer Public Library
Director's Monthly Usage Report

\\bdplserver\Document\Director\Statistics\Monthly Usage Reports\Usage Report 2011-current.xlsx

  CIRCULATION  RESERVES/HOLDS

ADULT YOUTH DIGITAL TOTAL ADULT YOUTH DIGITAL TOTAL 2015 2014
JAN. 10,695 4,883 450 16,028 10,789 4,802 347 15,938 Jan. 438 447 2,252 1,690
FEB. 9,314 4,841 439 14,594 9,983 4,799 320 15,102 Feb. 414 383 1,531 1,522
MARCH 10,648 5,833 487 16,968 10,843 5,535 309 16,687 Mar. 462 463 1,781 1,612
APRIL 10,079 5,031 513 15,623 10,683 5,360 982 17,025 April 441 481 1,520 1,453
MAY 9,796 4,637 503 14,936 10,652 5,383 328 16,363 May 344 429 1,353 1,490
JUNE 11,039 7,393 516 18,948 10,815 6,334 341 17,490 June 434 508 1,568 1,538
JULY 0 0 0 #N/A 12,251 6,946 333 19,530 July 0 514 0 1,389
AUGUST 0 0 0 #N/A 11,550 6,194 363 18,107 Aug. 0 459 0 1,482
SEPT. 0 0 0 #N/A 10,970 5,456 351 16,777 Sept. 0 519 0 1,703
OCT. 0 0 0 #N/A 11,061 5,372 431 16,864 Oct. 0 428 0 1,468
NOV. 0 0 0 #N/A 9,638 5,493 392 15,523 Nov. 0 337 0 1,277
DEC. 0 0 0 #N/A 9,760 4,604 353 14,717 Dec. 0 330 0 1,904
TOTAL 61,571 32,618 2,908 97,097 128,995 66,278 4,850 200,123 Total: 2,533 5,298 10,005 18,528

COMPUTER USE PROGRAMS BUILDING USE
2014 2014

Hours 
used

% of 
Capacity

% hours 
used vs. last 

year
Hours 
used

Juv/YA 
Prog

Juv/YA 
Attend Adult Prog

Adult 
Attend 2015 Total 2014 Total 2015 2014

JAN. 1,059 38% 2.5% 1,034 2 70 0 0 70 115 8,300 7,565
FEB. 990 43% 0.0% 990 11 304 3 47 351 187 8,221 7,264
MARCH 1,246 50% -1.6% 1,266 14 322 5 79 401 208 9,762 6,370
APRIL 1,141 52% -7.2% 1,230 11 224 2 37 261 123 9,802 8,506
MAY 1,133 49% -10.1% 1,259 5 56 1 15 71 99 9,722 9,943
JUNE 1,336 54% 2.4% 1,305 11 323 4 4 327 391 10,788 10,189
JULY #N/A - #N/A 1,503 0 0 0 0 0 459 0 11,570
AUGUST #N/A - #N/A 1,459 0 0 0 0 0 406 0 11,766
SEPT. #N/A - #N/A 1493 0 0 0 0 0 109 0 10,067
OCT. #N/A - #N/A 1,370 0 0 0 0 0 345 0 **10467
NOV. #N/A - #N/A 1,023 0 0 0 0 0 207 0 9,675
DEC. #N/A - #N/A 967 0 0 0 0 0 220 0 7,532
TOTAL #N/A 52% 21.8% 14,899 54 1,299 15 182 1,481 2,869 56,595 110,914

2015 2014 Paging 
slips '15

Paging 
slips '14

2015

** Avg of last 3 Octs-
  

2015

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 9 of 24



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 1/2Page
:

07/06/2015 11:28 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2015

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

2015
AMENDED
BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
06/30/2015

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 06/30/2015

INCREASE (DECREASE)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 151 - Library Fund
Revenues
Dept 000-11-TAXES

89.32 41,146.35 385,346.00 344,199.65 23,829.04 General Property Taxes151-000-11-4-00-10

89.32 41,146.35 385,346.00 344,199.65 23,829.04 Total Dept 000-11-TAXES

Dept 000-67-PARKS & CULTURE/RECREATION
74.93 1,378.65 5,500.00 4,121.35 941.21 Photocopies151-000-67-4-10-10
52.54 7,119.37 15,000.00 7,880.63 1,518.53 Library-Fines151-000-67-4-10-20
46.94 477.53 900.00 422.47 56.00 Sale of Materials151-000-67-4-10-30
46.85 797.22 1,500.00 702.78 114.50 Lost Material Charges151-000-67-4-10-40
96.75 65.10 2,000.00 1,934.90 468.70 Miscellaneous Charges151-000-67-4-10-90

60.49 9,837.87 24,900.00 15,062.13 3,098.94 Total Dept 000-67-PARKS & CULTURE/RECREATION

Dept 000-73-INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES
100.16 (158.00)96,852.00 97,010.00 0.00 MCFLS-Reciprocal Borrowing151-000-73-4-60-10

100.16 (158.00)96,852.00 97,010.00 0.00 Total Dept 000-73-INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

Dept 000-81-INTEREST INCOME
5.68 2,358.00 2,500.00 142.00 0.00 Investment Interest151-000-81-4-00-10

5.68 2,358.00 2,500.00 142.00 0.00 Total Dept 000-81-INTEREST INCOME

Dept 000-82-MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE
41.67 19,250.00 33,000.00 13,750.00 0.00 Rent Income151-000-82-4-00-10

41.67 19,250.00 33,000.00 13,750.00 0.00 Total Dept 000-82-MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE

Dept 000-84-INSURANCE RECOVERIES
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Insurance Recovery-Prop Damage151-000-84-4-00-50

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 000-84-INSURANCE RECOVERIES

Dept 000-85-DONATIONS
98.85 91.67 8,000.00 7,908.33 607.00 Donations - Library151-000-85-4-50-10

98.85 91.67 8,000.00 7,908.33 607.00 Total Dept 000-85-DONATIONS

86.83 72,525.89 550,598.00 478,072.11 27,534.98 TOTAL Revenues

Expenditures
Dept 510-51-92400

45.85 162,881.95 300,789.00 137,907.05 22,277.41 Salaries/Wages151-510-51-5-10-10
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Part-time/Temporary151-510-51-5-11-10

44.82 9,936.60 18,008.00 8,071.40 1,311.69 WI Retirement151-510-51-5-15-10
44.06 12,873.28 23,011.00 10,137.72 1,632.02 FICA151-510-51-5-15-15
47.84 26,876.97 51,527.00 24,650.03 4,101.87 Group Insurance151-510-51-5-15-20

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 10 of 24



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 2/2Page
:

07/06/2015 11:28 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer PERIOD ENDING 06/30/2015

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

2015
AMENDED
BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
06/30/2015

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 06/30/2015

INCREASE (DECREASE)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 151 - Library Fund
Expenditures

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Workers Comp Insurance151-510-51-5-15-25
66.46 1,173.73 3,500.00 2,326.27 462.00 Technical Services151-510-51-5-20-35
99.05 33.14 3,500.00 3,466.86 1,095.33 Printing Services151-510-51-5-20-40
71.48 5,703.55 20,000.00 14,296.45 0.00 Equipment Maintenance Services151-510-51-5-24-10
35.59 2,898.66 4,500.00 1,601.34 5.00 Office Supplies, Equip & Exp151-510-51-5-30-10
15.02 322.93 380.00 57.07 0.00 Postage & Mailing151-510-51-5-30-15
123.68 (71.03)300.00 371.03 20.78 Communications151-510-51-5-30-20
71.40 143.00 500.00 357.00 0.00 Professional Memberships151-510-51-5-45-10
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Professional Publications151-510-51-5-45-20

10.42 653.90 730.00 76.10 0.00 Professional Training151-510-51-5-45-30
57.33 85.35 200.00 114.65 114.65 Mileage Reimbursement151-510-51-5-45-40

47.65 223,512.03 426,945.00 203,432.97 31,020.75 Total Dept 510-51-92400

Dept 511-51
27.40 2,976.70 4,100.00 1,123.30 0.00 Collect Repair/Maint/Suppl151-511-51-5-35-40
60.77 2,157.51 5,500.00 3,342.49 1,130.00 Periodicals151-511-51-5-38-10
47.76 21,941.84 42,000.00 20,058.16 3,606.53 Books151-511-51-5-38-15
66.67 3,666.54 11,000.00 7,333.46 1,012.55 Audio/Visual151-511-51-5-38-20
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Library Grant Materials151-511-51-5-38-25

75.51 1,958.88 8,000.00 6,041.12 2,600.00 Donation Expenditures151-511-51-5-38-30
97.90 15.74 750.00 734.26 0.00 Library Programming151-511-51-5-38-40

54.15 32,717.21 71,350.00 38,632.79 8,349.08 Total Dept 511-51

Dept 512-51
49.44 8,595.87 17,000.00 8,404.13 1,051.37 Natural Gas/Electric Service151-512-51-5-22-10
29.75 421.51 600.00 178.49 0.00 Sewer/Water Services151-512-51-5-22-20
68.35 3,640.00 11,500.00 7,860.00 1,200.00 Cleaning Services151-512-51-5-23-10
128.37 (1,844.03)6,500.00 8,344.03 0.00 Building Maint/Repair Services151-512-51-5-23-15
60.29 476.50 1,200.00 723.50 117.44 Building Supplies151-512-51-5-35-10

69.32 11,289.85 36,800.00 25,510.15 2,368.81 Total Dept 512-51

Dept 512-92
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Transfer to Capital Imprvmt151-512-92-5-40-10

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 512-92

50.01 267,519.09 535,095.00 267,575.91 41,738.64 TOTAL Expenditures

1,357.78 (194,993.20)15,503.00 210,496.20 (14,203.66)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

50.01 267,519.09 535,095.00 267,575.91 41,738.64 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
86.83 72,525.89 550,598.00 478,072.11 27,534.98 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 151 - Library Fund:

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 11 of 24



INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 1/4Page: 07/06/2015 11:36 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer

POST DATES 06/01/2015 - 06/30/2015
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Check #AmountChk DateInvoice Invoice Desc.VendorInv. Line DescGL Number

Fund 151 Library Fund
Dept 510-51 92400

80330462.00 06/19/15FL02776TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGEMILW CO FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSTechnical Services151-510-51-5-20-35
80342704.71 06/19/1579732353BASE CHARGE & METER READXEROX CORPORATIONPrinting Services151-510-51-5-20-40
8042252.62 06/26/15501819082PERIODIC PAYMENTXEROX CORPORATIONPrinting Services151-510-51-5-20-40
80361338.00 06/26/15159210 CASES COPY PAPERCLEAR CUT PRINT SOLUTIONSPrinting Services151-510-51-5-20-40
803305.00 06/19/15FL02776TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGEMILW CO FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSOffice Supplies, Equip & Exp151-510-51-5-30-10
8026220.78 06/12/1506102015SERVICEAT & TCommunications151-510-51-5-30-20
80271114.65 06/12/1505012015MILEAGE & MEALS REIMBURSEDEIFFLER, STEPHANIEMileage Reimbursement151-510-51-5-45-40

1,697.76 Total For Dept 510-51 92400

Dept 511-51 
803301,130.00 06/19/15FL02776TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGEMILW CO FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSPeriodicals151-511-51-5-38-10
8020415.07 06/05/155013561582BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020414.33 06/05/152030620173BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020470.54 06/05/1520306201755 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020414.34 06/05/1520306201771 BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020444.59 06/05/1520306201783 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020413.28 06/05/1520306492631 BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
802048.70 06/05/152030649264BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020455.73 06/05/1520306492654 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020490.16 06/05/1520306201747 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80204158.54 06/05/15203064926612 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020412.74 06/05/1520306492681 BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020414.33 06/05/1520306492671 BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80204175.84 06/05/15203060329121 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020496.00 06/05/1520306407517 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80204(14.47)06/05/150002684969CREDIT BAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8022675.91 06/05/1585164888BOOKSINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICESBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80330292.00 06/19/15FL02776TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, COMPUTER EQUIPMENT, OVERDRIVE ADVANTAGEMILW CO FEDERATED LIBRARY SYSBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030913.81 06/19/152030667338BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030928.12 06/19/1520306673432 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030913.25 06/19/152030671301BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309280.14 06/19/15203067130020 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309126.29 06/19/1520306712999 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309170.08 06/19/15203066199119 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309100.03 06/19/15203066751512 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
803099.28 06/19/152030667337BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030950.45 06/19/1520306673394 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030928.13 06/19/1520306673412 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030913.81 06/19/152030667342BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030914.33 06/19/152030700852BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030923.03 06/19/1520307008532 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030950.63 06/19/1520307008544 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030911.57 06/19/152030700855BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030913.80 06/19/152030700856BOOKBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8030953.82 06/19/1520306811545 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309304.30 06/19/15203066734422 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309226.55 06/19/15203066734015 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309200.15 06/19/15203070085714 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80309194.57 06/19/15203067677922 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
803705.19 06/26/1585565954BOOKINGRAM LIBRARY SERVICESBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8035129.74 06/26/1520307150602 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8035129.74 06/26/1520307150612 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8035128.62 06/26/1520307150632 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 12 of 24



INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 2/4Page: 07/06/2015 11:36 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer

POST DATES 06/01/2015 - 06/30/2015
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Check #AmountChk DateInvoice Invoice Desc.VendorInv. Line DescGL Number

Fund 151 Library Fund
Dept 511-51 

8035129.72 06/26/1520307150642 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80351293.78 06/26/15203071506222 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
80351125.97 06/26/15203071363114 BOOKSBAKER & TAYLORBooks151-511-51-5-38-15
8020484.30 06/05/1520306201764 AUDIOBOOKSBAKER & TAYLORAudio/Visual151-511-51-5-38-20
80412928.25 06/26/15045886786737DVD'S, GIFTS, SUPPLIES, CREDITSSYNCB/AMAZONAudio/Visual151-511-51-5-38-20
803762,200.00 06/26/15109944200 SHELF REDUCERSLIBRARY BUREAU STEELDonation Expenditures151-511-51-5-38-30
80394200.00 06/26/1506172015BOOK-MEMOIRS OF A SUNDAY BRUNCH-20 COPIESPANDL, JULIADonation Expenditures151-511-51-5-38-30
80390200.00 06/26/1515.03.69LIBRARY LOGOMODUS DESIGN INCDonation Expenditures151-511-51-5-38-30

8,349.08 Total For Dept 511-51 

Dept 512-51 
8025647.19 06/05/1506042015KSERVICEWE ENERGIESNatural Gas/Electric Service151-512-51-5-22-10
802561,004.18 06/05/1506042015LSERVICEWE ENERGIESNatural Gas/Electric Service151-512-51-5-22-10
803201,200.00 06/19/1511624MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICEGIBB BUILDING MAINTENANCECleaning Services151-512-51-5-23-10
8028059.66 06/12/15S1908252.001BATH TISSUE, TRASH BAGSNASSCO INCBuilding Supplies151-512-51-5-35-10
8028057.78 06/12/15S1911623.001HAND TOWELSNASSCO INCBuilding Supplies151-512-51-5-35-10

2,368.81 Total For Dept 512-51 

12,415.65 Total For Fund 151 Library Fund

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 13 of 24



INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 3/4Page: 07/06/2015 11:36 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer

POST DATES 06/01/2015 - 06/30/2015
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Check #AmountChk DateInvoice Invoice Desc.VendorInv. Line DescGL Number

Fund 180 Strehlow Donation Fund
Dept 000-51 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

80272250.00 06/12/1510615SUMMER PERFORMER-MAGIC SHOWGLEN GERARD MAGIC PRODUCTIONSDonation Expense Library180-000-51-5-39-11
80327305.00 06/19/1506092015SPECTACULAR SCIENCE EVENTMAD SCIENCEDonation Expense Library180-000-51-5-39-11
80350199.54 06/26/1506252015SUMMER PROGRAM SUPPLIESANDERSEN-KOPCZYK, DANADonation Expense Library180-000-51-5-39-11
80412249.10 06/26/15045886786737DVD'S, GIFTS, SUPPLIES, CREDITSSYNCB/AMAZONDonation Expense Library180-000-51-5-39-11

1,003.64 Total For Dept 000-51 DUE FROM OTHER FUNDS

1,003.64 Total For Fund 180 Strehlow Donation Fund

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 14 of 24



INVOICE GL DISTRIBUTION REPORT FOR VILLAGE OF BROWN DEER 4/4Page: 07/06/2015 11:36 AM
User: BRIAN
DB: Brown Deer

POST DATES 06/01/2015 - 06/30/2015
JOURNALIZED

BOTH OPEN AND PAID

Check #AmountChk DateInvoice Invoice Desc.VendorInv. Line DescGL Number

12,415.65 Fund 151 Library Fund
1,003.64 Fund 180 Strehlow Donation Fund

Fund Totals:

13,419.29 Total For All Funds: 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 15 of 24



2016-2020 Library CIP Requests

CIP# Project Name Est Cost

LIB/16/1 Express self service [RFID phase 1] 111,200    

LIB/17/1 AMH [RFID phase 2] 85,000       

LIB/17/2 Staff PC, Server and Peripheral replacement 26,200       

LIB/18/1 Carpet 62,000       

LIB/18/2 Patio removal and landscaping, or rehabilitation 15,000       

LIB/19/1 Security camera system upgrade 15,000       

LIB/19/2 Patron/staff furniture 9,000         

LIB/20/1 Parking lot resurfacing, light pole refinishing 38,000       

CIP# format: Department/Year (or range)/Priority

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 16 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/16/1                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Express self service [RFID Phase 1]    

Total Project Cost: $111,200  Estimated Life of Project: 15 years-equipment, 30 years-furniture/fixtures 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  111,200 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: This project will place an RFID tag in each of 80,000 items, code them in the library’s 

database, install hardware and software on staff computers that will manage the RFID information, install security 

gates that will secure the RFID tagged items, and install 2 RFID-enabled express self service checkout/fine payment 

stations for patron use [$76,200]. Relocate/add data and electrical cables and modify/purchase furniture and 

fixtures necessary for the new equipment [$35,000].  

Project Justification: Use patterns require that a minimum of two circulation staff be scheduled to cover the 

front desk for every open hour in order to handle immediate customer service needs without long waits. These 

staff answer incoming phone calls, create library cards, retrieve patron holds, take fine/fee payments, answer 

questions and check items in and out. Simply checking items out to customers fully occupies one of the staff’s 

time. RFID allows libraries to outsource to the customer the simple tasks of checkout, holds retrieval and fine 

payment in a user-friendly way. Reconfiguration and ergonomics improvements in staff work areas will increase 

staff efficiency considerably. Both projects can release high-cost staff to address higher-value in-demand tasks that 

cannot be outsourced, and make it possible to increase library service without increasing staffing levels. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 17 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/17/1                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Automated materials handling [RFID Phase 2]    

Total Project Cost: $85,000  Estimated Life of Project: 15 years-equipment, 30 years-furniture/fixtures 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

85,000 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: This project will install an RFID enabled 3-bin automated materials handler (aka 

sorter/AMH) in the circulation area. Items returned by patrons will be automatically checked in and then sorted 

into large groupings [$50,000]. Setup of temporary circulation area in reading room, construction of patron-side 

induction wall, installation/rerouting of data and electrical connections, reconfiguration of staff workroom and 

replacement of furniture/fixtures as needed, relocation of Director’s office [$35,000].  

Project Justification: Extends the benefits of RFID express self-service technology to reduce staff labor and 

creates opportunities to increase library service without increasing staffing levels. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 18 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/17/2                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Staff PC, Server and Peripheral equipment replacement   

Total Project Cost: $26,200  Estimated Life of Project: 5 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

26,200 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Industry standard computer life cycle recommendation for office computer equipment is 4 

years for desktop PCs, and 5 years for networking hardware, servers and peripherals. 12 staff desktop PCs were 

installed in 2012, peripherals including printers and scanners were purchased in 1995, 2006 and 2011. The server 

was installed in 2012. 

Project Justification: All equipment is scheduled for replacement in order to pre-empt service outages due to 

failing aging hardware, and maintain interoperability with new third-party software and hardware. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 19 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/18/1                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Carpet replacement   

Total Project Cost: $62,000  Estimated Life of Project: 15-18 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

62,000 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Replace carpeting in library reading room, community room and staff areas. 

Project Justification: The Carpet and Rug Institute estimates that that commercial carpeting in a medium/high 

traffic facility can last 11-22 years depending on the maintenance routine used by the owner. Brown Deer Library’s 

carpet was installed in 2000. Routine maintenance with hot water extraction has been irregular, and some high 

traffic areas show significant wear and discoloration. Some sections repaired with overruns are now also showing 

wear. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 20 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/18/3                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Patio removal/remodel and landscaping   

Total Project Cost: $15,000  Estimated Life of Project: 30 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

15,000 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Remove or remodel patio, including but not limited to abandoning floor drain, 

backfilling, installing/replacing landscaping, installing bird netting under roof overhang, installing new 

light fixtures, installing vandalism-reduction materials where needed. 

Project Justification:  The outdoor sunken patio on the Library’s south side has gone unused for years, is 

deteriorating and collects debris. Landscaping around it has matured, some looking overgrown and 

unsightly, and creating a low visibility area that raises concerns about building security. Retaining wall 

seats are rotten and unattached, cement is crumbling. The roof overhang is a popular nesting place for 

birds, causing damage to light fixtures and significant annual cleaning needs. 

Project Picture / Map: 

   

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 21 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/19/1                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Security camera system upgrade   

Total Project Cost: $15,000  Estimated Life of Project: 15 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

15,000 Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Upgrade 15 year old (installed 2004) CCTV security camera system to IP cameras 

and DVR capture with high-resolution imaging.  

Project Justification:  As staff levels shrink but user visits increase, security cameras are crucial to our 

efforts to maintain appropriate behavior after school as well as identify and address theft of library and 

patron materials. Per security experts, an expected lifespan of 15 years is generous and existing 

software/hardware could be discontinued by the manufacturer and distributor soon. IP system will 

utilize a computer network to transmit images at high speed, allow longer records retention due to 

smaller data size, and be cheaper to maintain. Safety is a community priority, and we’re able to support 

this effort with an improved security camera system. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 22 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/19/2                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Furniture replacement - Reading Room and Staff    

Total Project Cost: $9,000  Estimated Life of Project: 15 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

9000 Click here to 
enter text. 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Replace major furniture pieces in library reading room and staff areas including 

desks, tables and chairs. 

 

Project Justification: Reading room and some staff furniture is over 30 years old. Soft reading room 

seats were recovered in 2010. Most staff task seating has been replaced at occasional intervals as 

needed. However, an updated appearance with new and more compact furniture will bring new life to 

the dated-looking library interior in a cost-effective manner. 

 

Project Picture / Map: 

  

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 23 of 24



FY 2016-2020 Capital Improvement Plan 
Project Description 

 

 

Project #: LIB/20/1                  Department: Library  

Project Name: Parking lot resurfacing and light pole refinishing   

Total Project Cost: $38,000  Estimated Life of Project: 18-20 years 

Expenditure Detail:  

Year 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Budget  Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

Click here to 
enter text. 

38,000 

 

Funding Sources:  Levy ☐ Debt ☐ Grant ☐ Donations ☐ Fund Balance ☐   

Project Description: Repave/resurface and restripe library parking lot, refinish parking lot light poles, replace 

parking lot light lenses. 

Project Justification: Parking lot was last resurfaced/repaved in 2003 and will require repair. Parking lot lights 

were installed in 1992. Metal finish has worn and flaked, and lenses have become cracked or discolored. 

Project Picture / Map: 

 

BDPL Board, July 2015, Page 24 of 24


	LIBRARY BOARD MEETING
	Library Community Room,  5:00 P.M.
	Charts
	Original

